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Complainant asserts that settlement of this matter is in the public interest, and the parties agree
that entry of this Consent Agreement without further litigation and without adjudication of any
issue of fact or law is the most appropriate means of resolving this matter at the least cost and
expense to the Respondent and the EPA.

This Consent Agreement, upon incorporation into a final order, applies to and is binding upon
the EPA and upon Respondent, and Respondent’s employees, agents, successors and assigns.
Any transfer of assets or real or personal property shall not alter Respondent’s responsibilities
under this agreement.

This Consent Agreement contains all terms of the settlement agreed to by the parties.

II. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS
Skoglund Excavating, Inc. is a corporation orgaﬁized under the laws of the State of Colorado.
The principal address for Skoglund Excavating, Inc. is 1100 Broadway Street, Moffat, Colorado,
81143. Its registered agent is Fleming & Associates, LLP, located at 430 W. Grand Avenue,
Salida, Colorado 81201.
At all relevant times, Robert Gregg Sease owned, leased, controlled and/or operated property
located in Sections 5, 7, and 8, Township 45 North, Range 5 East of the N.M.P.M., Saguache
County, Colorado including Sheep Creek and its adjacent wetlands (the Site).
Sheep Creek is a relatively permanent tributary to San Luis Lake. From the Site, Sheep Creek
flows approximately 3.1 miles to Saguache Creek, which flows approximately 60 miles to San
Luis Creek, which flows approximately 20 miles to San Luis Lake. San Luis Lake is currently
used, or was used in the past, or may be susceptible to use by interstate or foreign travelers, for
recreational or other interstate or foreign commerce.
Sometime between September 2011 and August 2012, Respondent, at the direction of Robert
Gregg Sease, discharged dredged or fill material into Sheep Creek and its adjacent wetlands at

approximately 86 locations over 1.66 miles of Sheep Creek at the Site.

2



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Robert Gregg Sease contracted with Respondent and Christopher Lovato to conduct the activities
found in paragraph 10.

On July 24, 2012, the Colorado Division of Water Resources (CODWR) informed the Corps and
the EPA about ongoing activities in Sheep Creek and its adjacent wetlands at the Site that
CODWR observed during an inspection of the Site on July 18, 2012.

On August 29, 2012, a multi-agency inspection was conducted at the Site with Robert Gregg
Sease, his legal counsel, and Bikis Water Consultants, LLC. The agencies participating in this
inspection included the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), the EPA, and the CODWR.
During this inspection, the EPA and the Corps found that the activities described in paragraph 10
were conducted without a permit required by section 404 of the CWA, 33. U.S.C. § 1344, in
violation of section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311.

Respondent is a “person” as defined in section 502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5).

The activities described in paragraph 10 were performed using common earthmoving vehicles
and equipment, all of which were operated by Respondent and/or by persons acting on its behalf.
The vehicles and equipment described in paragraph 15 are and were at all relevant times each a
“point source” as defined in section 502(14) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14).

The discharged dredged or fill material referenced in paragraph 10 above is and was at all
relevant times “dredged material” or “fill material” within the meaning of 33 C.F.R.§ 323.2(c)
or 33 C.F.R. § 323.2(e), respectively, and “pollutants” within the meaning of section 502(6) of
the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6).

Sheep Creek and its adjacent wetlands filled and disturbed by Respondent’s unauthorized
activities provided various functions and values, including: wildlife habitat for birds, mammals,

reptiles and amphibians; water quality enhancement; flood attenuation; and/or aesthetics.
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Sheep Creek and its adjacent wetlands referenced above are and were at all relevant times
“waters of the United States” as defined in 33 C.F.R. § 328.3(a) and therefore “navigable waters”
as defined in section 502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7).

The placement of dredged or fill material into Sheep Creek and its adjacent wetlands constitutes
the “discharge of pollutants” as defined in section 502(12) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12).
Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits, among other things, the discharge of
pollutants by any person into waters of the United States except as in compliance with

section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344(a).

Section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, sets forth a permitting system authorizing the
Secretary of .the Army, acting through the Chief of Engineers of the Corps, to issue permits for
the discharge of dredged or fill material into navigable waters which are defined as waters of the
United States.

According to 33 C.F.R. § 323.3(a), a permit issued by the Corps is required for the discharge of
dredged or fill material into waters of the United States, unless an exemption pursuant to

33 C.F.R. § 323.4 applies.

Respondent is not and never has been authorized by a permit issued pursuant to section 404 of
the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, to conduct any of the activities described in paragraph 10.

III. DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATION

The activities conducted by Respondent and/or by persons acting on his behalf as described in
paragraph 10 violate section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a). Each discharge of
pollutants from a point source by Respondent into waters of the United States without the
required permits issued pursuant to section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, constitutes a
violation of section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a). Each day the discharges remain in

place without the required permits constitutes an additional day of violation of section 301(a) of


















U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY REGION 8
1595 Wynkoop Street, Denver, CO 80202-1129

PUBLIC NOTICE OF PROPOSED ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY ASSESSMENT AND
OPPORTUNITY TO COMMENT ON CLEAN WATER ACT CONSENT AGREEMENT

Purpose of Public Notice
The purpose of this notice is to announce the United States Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA’s)
intention to enter into a consent agreement with:

Skoglund Excavating, Inc.
1100 Broadway Street
Moffat, Colorado 81143

for alleged violations of the Clean Water Act (CWA) on Sheep Creek, Saguache County, Colorado, and to give
the public the opportunity to comment on the proposed consent agreement.

Process Information

Under the CWA, the EPA is authorized to issue orders assessing civil penalties for violations of the CWA.

33 U.S.C. § 1319(g). The EPA may issue such an order after the commencement of an administrative penalty
proceeding. As required by law, the EPA is hereby providing public notice of the proposed consent agreement.
33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(4)(A) and 40 C.F.R. § 22.45(b).

Administrative enforcement proceedings are conducted under the EPA's Consolidated Rules of Practice
Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation, Termination or Suspension of
Permits (Consolidated Rules), 40 C.F.R. part 22. The procedures through which the public may submit written
comment on a proposed consent agreement and participate in a proceeding are set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 22.45.
The proposed consent agreement has been entered into by the parties for the purpose of simultaneously
commencing and concluding this matter as authorized by 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b) and executed pursuant to 40
C.F.R. § 22.18(b)(2) and (3). The deadline for submitting public comment on a proposed consent agreement is
forty (40) days after the date of this public notice.

Case Summary

The consent agreement in the matter of Skoglund Excavating, Inc. (Respondent), Docket No. CWA-08-2014-
0027, was filed on July 31, 2014. A settlement was reached via pre-filing negotiations and formalized in this
consent agreement with a proposed penalty of $4,000 for unpermitted discharges of dredged or fill material into
Sheep Creek and its adjacent wetlands, near Saguache, Saguache County, Colorado. The unpermitted
discharges occurred sometime between September of 2011 and August 2012. Sheep Creek is, and was at all
relevant times, a water of the United States.

Further Information and Comments

Persons wishing to receive a copy of any documents filed in these proceedings, comment upon the proposed
consent agreement, or otherwise participate in any of the proceedings should contact the Regional Hearing
Clerk, Tina Artemis, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 8 (8RC), 1595 Wynkoop Street, Denver,
Colorado 80202-1129, telephone: 303.312.6765. Written comments on this proposed consent agreement must
be directed to the Regional Hearing Clerk by the deadline set forth above in this public notice. For technical
questions, contact Kenneth Champagne, Technical Enforcement Program, at champagne.kenneth@epa.gov, the
same EPA address above, or 303.312.6608. Persons with legal questions may contact Jim Eppers, Legal
Enforcement Program, at eppers.jim @epa.gov, the same EPA address above, or 303.312.6893. The case docket
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for this proceeding is located in the EPA - Region 8 office identified above and the file will be open for public
inspection during normal business hours. Written comments submitted by the public are available as part of the
case docket, subject to provisions of law restricting public disclosure of confidential information. In order to
provide opportunity for public comment, no final order assessing a penalty in these proceedings will be issued
prior to 40 calendar days after publication of this notice.

July 31, 2014
Date of Publication



